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ROMAN WATCHFIELD

WATCHFIELD - HOW IT WAS (OR SO WE THINK!)
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THE NAME OF WATCHFIELD
According to the earliest genuine Charter (931 AD) the original name of Watchfield was WAECLESFELD.

The second element of the name is derived from the old english word of FELD meaning ‘open land’ not

necessarily cultivated land, in an area where there was still
generally considerable areas of uncleared woodland.

The first element of the name WAECLES is more
of a problem, although it now seems quite certain that it
derives from a personal name of some sort which went out
of fashion and was ultimately forgotten. Following the
Norman Conquest the ‘L’ was replaced by an ‘N’. Thus

WHAT’S IN A NAME

Wacenesfel (726 AD)
Wacenesfeld
Waethenesfeld

the spelling WACHENESFELD as in the Domesday Book. Waeclesfeld
This apparently was a quite common corruption in the Wakelesfeld
late eleventh century. The name was further corrupted Watchenesfeld
during later centuries. The ‘T’ first appeared in the Wachenesfelde
sixteenth centure with forms like WATCHYNGFELD Watchyngfeld
(1547) and WATCHFELD (1585). Watchingfeeld
Watchfeld

So from the early spelling it does not seem Watchfield (19 AD)
possible to associate Watch Towers or look out posts
with the name Watchfield, however tempting this might

be.

WATCHFIELD 1066 RATEABLE VALUE?

The township of Watchfield was a part of the Shrivenham Hundred and just prior to 1066 was assessed
at 20 hides with a value of £ 15. At this time Watchfield comprised of 14 villagers, 10 small holders with six
ploughs, one mill and eight slaves, After the Norman Conquest Watchfield was reassessed at 10 hides with a
value of £ 10.

THE HUNDREDS

Most of the English Shires were divided into small administrative districts called Hundreds. These were
probably formed in the tenth century, although an earlier date is possible for those in the West Saxon shires.

In theory, the Hundred represented a district assessed for purposes of taxation at 100 hides but in practice
they were rated at a higher and a lower figure.

The Hide was originally the amount of land which would support a household. This naturally varied
according to the fertility of the soil, but on average it seems to have been about 120 acres.

The Hundred enjoyed particular financial and jurisdictional functions and had its own court and meeting
place.

NOTES FROM THE ARCHIVES IN THE 17th CENTURY
“Watchfield:  The Vicar has of the inhabitants there 12 bushells of wheat and 12
bushells of barley due yearly at The Feast of All Saints and of the
mill there called West Mill 12 bushells of barley and of the mill
called Little Mill 8 bushells of barley due at the said Feast of All Saints. . ..

Item . ... there belongeth to the Chapel of Watchfield aforesaid a plot of mead
of meadow being near Grove called or known by the name of Churcheham
(Churcham) of the yearly value of £2**

Reading Archives : Ref. No. D/X/151.  Inventory 13th October, 1635.
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Little Mill is almost certainly what is now Tuck Mill. Apparently the name Tuck comes from the Washing of sheep
fleeces through the running water which was known as tucking.

There is a land lease renewal which is dated 2nd March, 1773, and mentions the following names:

Startingborough field - now Strattenborough Castle Farm (the start of the borough?.)

Lammascross field - to the east of Startingborough. Lammastide was 1st August, Harvest Festival and was customary
to erect a cross where people could celebrate. It is more than likely that such a cross existed here to have been

given such a name.

Laydownhill Common - positioned on what is now known as Watchfield Common Wood near Castle Farm. There is
also mentioned ‘‘bowling green’ (green for playing games) nearby.

The Ford - over by the common looks to have been well used and may have had strong connections with the deserted
medieval village of Fresden (now an ancient monument).

The Archery Butts - was situated in the triangle formed by the Watchfield/Longcot road joining the A420 and was
known as Whitecross Butts.
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THE OLD SCHOOL

On 22nd February, 1862, the Rt. Hon. William, Earl of Radnor and Jacob Pleydell Bouverie, Viscount
Folkstone (eldest son and heir to the Earl of Radnor) granted to the village of Watchfield, under the administration
of the Vicar and Churchwardens and their successors, a parcel of land measuring 229 square feet. The land was
given on the understanding that its sole use would be a Church of England school or schools for the infants of
Watchfield. A proviso attached was that if at any time it ceased to be a school the entire land and dwellings
thereon would revert back to the heirs of the Earl of Radnor as if the grant had never been made!

On average, 47 children attended this school whilst 30 older children were taught at Shrivenham. The
school continued until 1913 when it finally closed. Thereafter the children attended Shrivenham School until
Watchfield County Primary School was built in 1963.

The old school was initially sold to Mr. J. Miller. During the following years it was used mainly as a
warehouse until June 1978 when planning permission was granted for a dwelling place. This permission was

conditional on retaining the original structure and facade.





image5.jpeg
[3EEN Sowno WERLADUTS.





